MINUTES OF THE
TOWN COUNCIL MEETING
OF GARDEN CITY, UTAH

The Garden City Town Council held their regularly scheduled meeting on Thursday, June 10, 2021, at

the Garden City Lakeview Building located at 69 N. Paradise Parkway, Building C. Mayor Leonhardt
opened the meeting at 5:04 p.m.

Town Council Members present:
Mike Leonhardt, Mayor
Pat Argyle
Ken Hansen
Howard Pope
Jordan Parry was excused.

Others Present;

Y
en Madsen
Hamilton

Kathy Hislop
Cathie Rasmussen
Janece Dorrity
Gary Dorrity

Justin Hamilton
Martell Menlove
Ronda Menlove
Barbara Turnbow ¢
Randall Knight,
Jesse Calder ¢
Tierney Calder

Boennie Jorgenson
Nick Nielson
Joey Stocking
Norm Mecham

Senator Chris Wilson Johnathon Lee
Kiegston-Wilson Bess Huether
>Jorgenson Tom Hill

Porter

Via Teleconferer
Jerald Ha
Glen Gillies

Pledge of Allegiance a H/Praver

The pledge of allegiance was led by Mayor Leonhardt and the prayer was offered by Council Member
Pope.

1. Roll Call

Mayor Leonhardt asked for a roll call of Council Members present: Mayor Leonhardt, Council
Member Argyle, Council Member Hansen, Council Member Pope and Council Member Patry was
excused.



2. Recognize Senator Chris Wilson and Mr. Randall Knight for the fridge and freezer for the
food pantry

Senator Wilson spoke to those in attendance and welcomed Ronda Menlove to the State
Transportation Commission, region 1. Wilson wants to see improved planning on roads for our area
and corridor preservation. Wilson stated he has been assigned to chair the IGG Appropriations
Subcommittee. IGG stands for Infrastructure and General Government. That puts him over the
UDOT budget and state buildings budget. Wilson hopes to help with our growth issues.

fx\‘

for their work in getting a
ipment. She reported

Barbara Turnbow recognized Senator & Mrs. Wilson and Randall Knig
freezer and fridge for the food pantry with a plaque that will go on the
helping 10 families on a regular basis at the pantry. The pantry is.4
program.,

acquisition but wished to not be recognized.

3. Honor Past Board Members

Carmen Madsen was the only one present.} dt | er a plaque and thanked her for
her years of service on the Library Board. F e Bourne and Lindsey
Thompson would be receiving a plaque for th mmission.

4. Approval of Minutes

Council Member Pgpet
Thursday, May 13, 2021

to which Hamilt would resend it in an email.

Council Member Azgyle made the motion to accept Blue Bird Candy on the condition that they
provide their sales tax license to the town. Council Member Pope seconded the motion. A vote
was taken: Council Member Argyle, for; Council Member Hansen, for; Council Member Pope,
for; Mayor Leonhardt, for. Motion Carried.

b. Bear Hollow Apartments, 302 N Bear Hollow Lane, Tony Johnson

No representative was present. Town Clerk Kathy Hislop stated that the town does not require
apartments to have a business license, but their ownership has requested that the manager get a
business license for the apartments.



Council Member Pope made the motion to approve the business license for Bear Hollow
Apartments. Council Member Argyle seconded the motion. A vote was taken: Council Member

Argyle, for; Council Member Hansen, for; Council Member Pope, for; Mayor Leonhardt, for.
Motion Carried.

¢. Bear Lake Stay and Play Properties, LLC, 515 South Stump Hollow Rd. Jesse and Tierney
Calder Jesse

Jesse and Tierney Calder were present. They explained they would
property management company out of their home.

unning a cleaning and

Council Member Hansen made the motion to approve the Bé; roperties Stay and Play

Mayor Leonhardt, for. Motion Carried.

6. Food Truck Permits Discussion/Approval

Blvd, Leo Mitchell

Leo Mitchell was not present.

grfood truck
Council Member Pope seconded the motion. Agyote was-take
Council Member Hansen, for;zCouncil Member‘l?:,\gp

. Rick and Rosemairw
Andrea Griesemer, 2176

Lane, 1082 B Bt Ay e Blvdi2176 S Bear Lake Blvd, 890 S Boosway Circle, 976 Yacht Dr #2, 330
W Morning Star C \\and: 7 Belle Dr. Council Member Argyle seconded the motion. A vote was

Mayor Leonhardt, for. Motion Carried.

8. Public Comments, 2-minute time limit

Bess Huefner provided an advertisement saying it’s Dyers Woad week and to get the bags from her.
She requests that they cut the tops because the ground is too hard to dig.

9, Discussion/Approval of Encumbrance
Encumber Buttercup Mobile Home Estates Lot 3 to previously encumbered lots 1 and 2, creating one
lot at 667 S Cedar Drive. Jerald and Pamela Harper




Jerald Harper attended via teleconference

Council Member Argyle asked if that lot would have sewer, water and power, and how many RV’s
will they park on it. Harper responded that it will not have amenities. It’s just a spot for their kids to
come up with their RV’s. Argyle asked if they have a house there. Harper responded, yes.

Argyle asked if Harper planned on using it as a nightly rental. Council Member Hansen asked if he
would just apply for the permit to have more than 1 RV,

Council Member Argyle made the motion to encumber lot 3 with lot 1
Council Member Pope seconded the motion. A vote was taken: Coung;
Council Member Hansen, for; Council Member Pope, for; Mayor L

L %667 S Cedar Dr.
ember Argyle, for;
dt, for. Motion Carried.

10. Planned Unit Development Discussion/Approval

a. Regquests for Final Approval to a PUD for Conestogé
Parkway. 35 motorcoach sites and 32 cabin lots. S&fl

27 N Paradise

Bf‘fﬁ%

& the one-way flgw of traffic on

and things that were on the
et obtained addresses from the

the RV lots and easement for the canal, storm water, fire hydt;
construction documents, they wanted shown on the plat as well:

are on the plat. The one- way signage request
drawing, and not on the plat.

preferred it ng

ez

that not having the bull

campground. It all n
still be the same. Porte

$eparate for the existing campground. He also asked if the HOA would
es, it will all be under the same PUD.

Porter stated that he just emailed the CC&R’s, but the attorney will still need to review them.

Argyle told them they need address, CC&R’s, water shares, and their water plan from meeting with the
Public Works Director.

Mayor Leonhardt said he will visit with Porter tomorrow and help him work out the water shares. He
will also speak with JUB as to why there’s nothing about water shares from them before now.

No motion was made.



b. Final Amended Plat, Request to amend the plat for Harbor Village PUD, this project is
called the Harbor View Townhomes, 7 units, on parcel #41-17-000-0050. This is the
existing foundation located in Harbor Village. This is the existing foundation located in
Harbor Village. Rod Thompson & Jake Thompson

Rod and Jake Thompson were present.

Mayor Leonhardt said that from reviewed Thompsons approval from Planning and Zoning with
the conditions of lot numbers, party wall agreement, and water agreemet, Jake said that the party ’
wall agreement is changed in the CC&R’s already. Ry

v

that the signature block

9

t seen anythin ayor Leonhardt
. Hansen also asked if thiSqwas.a ngw project
or if it was already on the Harbor Village Plat. J ‘ age plat and

is just being amended.

Mayor Leonhardt if there was a title ripon and the Article®
Leonhardt asked if the CC&R’s went to th

;c\l they were submitted before
the last meeting to the city, but he belie &

sCC&R’s, so he thought

Mayor Leonhardt aified that there was a miscommunication with the preliminary approval last
month. Leonhardt dke with the Council Members Hansen and Argyle and gave them temporary
Preliminary Approval until tonight’s meeting where that would need to be ratified and the
Thompsons would be presenting for preliminary and final tonight.

Council Member Argyle asked questions since she was not in attendance last month. She asked if
it would be asphalted, yes. Mayor Leonhard asked about the road. Ronda Goodell came to the table
to discuss the city taking over the private road from the Seasons. Argyle asked about previous
plans for the road to go through and have sidewalks and trees. Rod said that Ronda and Stan
Goodell own that land and it’s their decision. Ronda asked if it would be a 12 ft easement, or if that
road needed to be widened, and who would pay for that. The answer was that it needs to be 24 ft.



Goodell stated they were open to. working with the city to figure out how to make that road work.
Mayor Leonhardt stated he’d like to discuss it in the future with the Goodell’s and Garth Day, but
that it would not affect Thompsons project tonight. Goodell asked what the time frame was on the
road issue, and the mayor responded, “as soon as possible.” The mayor and Thompsons suggested
doing a phone meeting together to work it out.

Council Member Hansen asked where the water rights are. The water rights were already taken
care of when they did the Seasons. This is just an amended plat. Hansen requested that the water
shares be verified. Hansen said he cannot vote for this without an ingrg §\a,nd egress. Rod said

that there is an ingress and egress. Rod prov1ded a letter stating that th > roads would be

ngh Bear Lake Escape. The

Pope seconded the motion. A vote was taken: Qo
Hansen, for; Council Member Pope, for; Mayor Leo

facility with employee hoysing.above it. Coungil Mémber
i L that an engineer had drawn up the parking area,

a. QGarden Cit%f\ Sn Council will receive public input regarding the proposed Garden City
Budget for fiscal year July 1, 2021 through June 30, 2022.

Council Member Pope made the motion to go into the public hearing at 6:32 pm. Council Member
Argyle seconded the motion. A vote was taken: Council Member Argyle, for; Council Member
Hansen, for; Council Member Pope, for; Mayor Leonhardt, for. Motion Carried.

The Minutes of the Public Hearing will be kept on a separate record



Council Member Pope made the motion to close the public hearing and return to the regular
meeting at 6:34 pm. Council Member Hansen seconded the motion. A vote was taken: Council

Member Argyle, for; Council Member Hansen, for; Council Member Pope, for; Mayor Leonhardt,
for. Motion Carried.

12. Subdivision Discussion/Approval

a. Amended Plat, Request to amend Woodhaven Subdivision, located approximately 184 and
190 S Bear Lake Blvd, Janece Dorrity.

Janece and Gary Dorrity were present. She had a corrected plat she pres
over the recommendations from the Planning Commission with the C
gotten a variance for an addition to “Mama Bear” and now needed m
“Baby Bear” has the most land, so Dorrity is requesting the amen meént

et to the council and went
i1, She explained she had
arking.
vide for additional
iance with occupancy

requirements. Dorrity responded yes.

Mayor Leonhardt asked if we have the current title re f Dorritygsaid she can’t isis
approved. Leonhardt said he cannot sign the mylagstintil the title r¢

council to determine if it’s approved.

Council Member Argyle made the motion.
Haven Subdivision and the mayor will sig
Member Pope seconded the motion. A vo

the title report for it. Council
‘irgyle, for; Council

ot _ imdiégus’s. Argyle said 20 ft is not wide enough for
ads. Mayor, Leonhardt'clarified that the easements be 24 ft to meet the

d that ‘0ad would need to be paved for them to plow that road. Argyle
that that, d must be a benefit to the city for them to take it over, so
ed as a§i ngress/egress?

at the minimum road width? Dan Kurek said that the roads in the
ey cannot connect to a 20 ft private road and meet city ordinance.

highway. It can count casement if it’s 24 ft wide, but the city won’t take it. Argyle further
explained that the 20 ft gravel road that continues to the highway was grandfathered in, and it was only
for 3 homes. This development will change the use of that road.

Council Member Hansen asked if what part of the canal they are intending to pipe? Nielson said it
won’t be the entire canal, just what goes behind the back of the lots and over to Buttercup. Hansen
showed on the plat the terrain he is concerned about. He asked Dan Kurek if the Planning Commission
had reviewed the canal bank or if there was a soil study done? No. Hansen is concerned about the
houses being put on the ¥ acre lots by the canal if the canal fills up. He pointed out the history of the
natural drainage through that area. Nelson mentioned they have agreements to pipe more of the canal
if needed. Argyle questions what “as needed” means should there be seepage or canal issues after all



the lots are sold the developer is gone. Norm Mecham from the audience commented that the canal
does not function as storm water drainage. Much discussion ensued.

Mayor Leonhardt said that Nielson needs to go back to their engineer to get the road and the water
issues resolved before it can be approved.

Nielson suggested an alternative road, asking for preliminary approval if he could come out on
Paradise Parkway instead of the highway. Argyle asked again, how would that benefit the city if they

wanted the city to take the roads over? Mayor Leonhardt stated that there is no benefit to the city, so
the roads would have to remain private.
i,

ter that could fill the canal.
¢ lake? Mayor Leonhardt
»Leonhardt said he

Norm Mecham in the audience was asked to comment on the amount.¢

Mayor Leonhardt clarified with Planning Commissight

requirements are 60 ft, Kurek said it would be changing

agreement from the Negus’s on that road.
No motion was made.

Ken Hansen left the buildin

ry Plat Jeffreviewed the Developer Agreement with the
send of North Star Way which is right before phase 6. Lot 43

e good fire accg
a waste. J org\% n plansf,

Commission ax (:1 i ¢ approved by the proper authonty (i.e. the Fire Chief) before it can
~ ecorded deed restriction.

Jorgenson also broughtyp:a’problem with sewer on Lot 43 and 45. For these 2 lots, the sewer will have
a dry sewer until they cgn get the sewer to them through Phase 6. These lots will be unbuildable until
the sewer is resolved. Jorgenson stated that the sewer will be completed even if he doesn’t develop
phase 6 and is stated in the Developers Agreement as a deed restriction.

Mayor Leonhardt asked if the town has sent the Developer Agreement to the city attorney. No. That
will be resolved when the preliminary plans are turned in and everything is sent together.

Jeff said that before they do final plat approval, that JUB will inspect the project, see what still needs
to be done, then 10% of the total amount will be bonded for a year.



Council Member Argyle made the motion to approve the Conceptual Plan with the understanding the
attorneys will look at the Conceptual Plan with the Developers Agreement and the Garden City will
get a response. Council Member Pope seconded the motion. A vote was taken: Council Member
Argyle, for; Council Member Pope, for; Mayor Leonhardt, for. Motion Carried.

Mayvor Leonhardt called for a 3-minute break,

Council Member Hansen returned to the building.

d. Preliminary Plat for Hawk Rock, 22 lots, northwest corner of PerAlmmon Dr & Paradise
Parkway. The Legends at Bear Lake LLC i

Norm Mecham and Teri Eynon were present. Eynon explained tha, ave 2 maps for the council to
view the plans properly.

Council Member Hansen recused himself because he’s p
Hansen left the building.

for Hillside Estates. He calculates that it still ﬁtsthat
development with open space,»Gouncil Member\Ar yle

there to remal\ﬁ\here Mecham also stated that he’d like to have
he space and % maintains it, when Argyle said they may

ffered to keep the dedicated open space in his
of usage plans.
>

mylar is turned in, {
said he will research it

they,¢an start selling. But when can he get a building permit? Mayor Leonhardt
€ town can be consistent.

Mecham talked with the council about Persimmon Drive and his interaction with JUB for him to not
cut and fill the road. He also brough up paving the roads. He said that for now, he’d keep the roads
private, take pavement off the plan, then submit it for final. Until they turn the roads over the city, they
do not need to be paved.

Council Member Pope made the motion to approve the preliminary plat for Hawk Rock, 22 lots.
Council Member Argyle seconded the motion. A vote was taken: Council Member Argyle, for;
Council Member Pope, for; Mayor Leonhardt, for. Motion Carried.



Council Member Ken Hansen returned to the building,

13. Ordinance Discussion/Approval
Ordinance #21-21. An Ordinance Changing Land Use Deadlines for Approvals

Mayor Leonhardt talked to the council about meeting with the office staff and Dan Kurek and Joey
Stocking of the Planning Commission. He discussed an idea of 21 days to get things to the city, who
will then submit digital copies to the attorney and engineer. They will have 7 days to review and send
comments back to the city and/or developer. The developer can then work with their engineer/attorney
to make any changes required. The developer will then submit their compl ted. plans to the clerk by
noon, 7 days before the meeting.

requlrmg Hansen listed a timeline to defend his position of pagallo
attorney and JUB to review developments if they are not ufx ilizing ’che time now.

Mayor Leonhardt read through the ordinance to clarify the de
not respond as needed, then there may need.to be a change.

Town Clerk, Kathy Hislop, asked about cha
preliminary and final. Hislop asked when the

imeline proced i ybe the same as
% wants the L tle Report and CC&Rs. The

» eliminary and Final shall be digitally

requested to remove all r €
Rdmance that the bylaws need to be submitted

submitted to the town

ot having wve the big copies for Town Council. Suggested
{ Town Council submission deadline to 4pm on Thursday and

o

opies are prov1ded in the beglnnmg Packets will be

motion to approve Ordinance 21-21 with the adjustments that have
Argyle seconded the motion. A vote was taken: Council Member
Hansen, for; Council Member Pope, for; Mayor Leonhardt, for. Motion

been made. Council®Vie
Argyle, for; Council
Carried.

14. Final Budget Review, Discussion/Approval, July 2021 through June 30, 2022
a. Final budeet for the General Fund, Enterprise Fund, SID Fund, Capital Project Fund, and
Beach Access Fund for fiscal year July 1, 2021 through June 30, 2022

Town Clerk, Kathy Hislop clarified with the Council that the original budget column was what
they were approving. Council Members reviewed the tax and building permit revenues compared



to what was budgeted. Mayor Leonhardt asked if cost of living was added to the budget for
employees. Not yet. Leonhardt suggested a 4% increase on employee wages.

Council Member Argyle asked about money for picnic tables and was told that there was money
in Parks for that. Argyle discussed purchasing tables and temporary umbrellas. Council Member
Hansen brought up permanent structures over tables. Discussion ensued about the Heritage Park
plan, how that would work, and where tables or structures would be placed. Leonhardt also

suggested the idea of a splash pad and what the council thought and the best place for it in one of
our parks.

Council Member Hansen wants to put more asphalt on the road d
He feels it needs 3 more inches. Mayor agrees and the bike trai
Council Member Argyle brought up a stop light from Paradi

vto Johnson’s cement plant.
250 S to where it crosses.
to Highway 89 by the

clinic and down by the new Mike’s Market. There is a study being dogexight now by UDOT
about it. Leonhardt said he also asked Public Works tqﬁ“&g n sidewalks this next year.

Council Member Argyle brought up the parking along the highway north of
Marina and the danger it poses. John Lee saidtheg %nimg&issioners are awat
talking about it. ¢ .

Council Member Hansen made the motion to algp}%
2022. Council Member Pope seconded the rnoﬁ‘@;g. A

Council Member Hansen, for;:Council Member\izo g,f;%br; M

Vi

Council Member Argyle
seconded the moti

lthat it’s just ballot counting judges. Because we do not need a
can wait until next month.

b. Council Member Hansen asked Commissioner Lee about the bike path connecting. Lee said
there were no bids for the project. Lee stated that it is a priority for Commissioner Cox.
Mayor and Lee discussed an agreement where Garden City would sweep from Ideal Beach
on south. Hansen suggested having the county replace a brush or help with equipment
costs. Lee agreed to take that suggestion back to the County Commissioners.

16. Council Member Reports




Council Member Hansen

The library people are saying that they are having problems with email. Cathie Rasmussen knows
about it and a work around. Ronda Menlove resigned from the Library Board. The Food Pantry
is separating from the Library Board. Mike’s Market is being very supportive of the pantry. The
Food Pantry will be creating their own 3-person board with their own bylaws. Hansen and the
mayor have already reviewed that.

Hansen said there is a real possibility that there will be a grant or donation for the library.
Hansen has a vision of a place for people to go and sit quietly. He’d like to close in the carport to
create that area. If the donation comes through, he’d like the council nsider it. Council
Member Argyle asked if the donation would be that big. Hansen e ?%iwould not cover the
total cost.

Hansen also has a vision for the welcome signs for the to
him with a proposal for new signs in the coming weeks<H
and where people will want to have their picture tak

Council Member Pope &
Pope road the trails up Garden City Canyon from Brig
He also rode the summit road down to Hodges. He want

Some repairs geed to be made.
check the rest of Hodges still.

Council Member Argyle
Raspberry Days, the grand martial will
of the t-shirts. She’s got help for the parad,
wheelers to drive the parade route to keep'Rids ba
lp.with that. Stacey said h

motorcycle cops to he

that. =5
Argyle reported ite full. An elec ';-'Qﬂ?l}jke will be the “chicken-shit” game, prize.
Bingo went well last yg: ill be doingl gain. Mayor Leonhardt asked if Patrick

sdr. Argyle spoke with him last year about doing

fire Dept wants

3% of July the be:d'concert. Dustin Hansen is helping bring in Caroline Jones. The concert
will be about 7pnt 1g screen will be set up for a tribute. City will be buying the screen from
Ken Hansen. Ch%éi& Stocking and Scott Livingston will be putting it together with a focus on our
local 1% responders and volunteers as well as military. Fireworks at 10pm. Scott Livingston will
be doing our fireworks. Fire Chief has been contacted that it’s good to go. Scott will work with
the Fire Chief as well. Scott will be having his bus at the patk running music. The Chamber
wants to have games in the afternoon for kids and families.

On July 24" there will be fireworks and concerts out between Blue Water Beach and Ideal Beach
that Dustin Hansen is putting together. He will be doing a Labor Day one as well. The mayor
reported he’d like to do something a couple weeks after Labor Day.



There was a discussion about a fireworks ban and that decisions need to be made. The State of
Utah has already made a fireworks ban on private and unincorporated lands.

John Lee said he’d like to see the county participate in the city celebrations. He’d like to get
more involved.

Mayor Leonhardt stated the council will be going into executive session to talk about
negotiations with water.

EXECUTIVE SESSION

Argyle, for, Council Member Hansen, for;
Carried.

17. Payment Vouchers

Michael Leonhardt,®

Attest: &

Cathie Rasmussen, Assistant Town Clerk



MINUTES OF THE
TOWN COUNCIL PUBLIC HEARING
OF GARDEN CITY, UTAH

The Garden City Town Council held a public hearing on Thursday, June 10, 2021, in the Garden

City Pineview Room Building located at 69 N. Paradise Parkway, Building B. Mayor Leonhardt
opened the meeting at 6:32 p.m.

Town Council Members present:
Mike Leonhardt, Mayor
Pat Argyle
Ken Hansen
Howard Pope

Others Present:
Kathy Hislop
Cathie Rasmussen
Janece Dorrity
Gary Dorrity
Martell Menlove
Ronda Menlove
Jeff Jorgenson
Seth Porter
Carmen Madsen
Terri Enyon

Via Teleconference
Glen Gillies ¢

Roll Call

Mayor Leonhardt asked for a roll call of Council Members present: Mayor Leonhardt, Council
Member Argyle, Council Member Hansen, Council Member Pope.

Mayor Leonhardt recited that this public hearing is to receive public input regarding the
proposed Garden City Budget for fiscal year July 1, 2021 through June 30, 2022.



Mayor Leonhardt asked if anyone would like to comment. Bess Huefner, in the audience, asked
where to find a copy of the budget online. Town Clerk Kathy Hislop stated that the one being
reviewed tonight is on the Public Notice Website and that they can call the town office for
copies. A few hard copies were available at the public hearing.

There were no further public comments.
Adjournment

Council Member Pope made the motion to close the public hear)ﬂn -2 ds»,;etu o the regular
Town Council meeting at 6:34 pm. Council Member Hansen s¢ ) t1on A vote was
taken: Council Member Argyle, for; Council Member Hans ’ ember Pope, for;
Mayor Leonhardt, for. Motion carried. "

APPROVAL:

Attest:




